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SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA
COUNTY OF SAN MATEO

GAN YE and XIAO YUN ZHENG, 530008
Individually, as Heirs and Successors 1n Interest | Case No.
of, YE MENG YUAN, Deceased,

Plamntiffs, COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES
v
CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO,
JOANNE HAYES-WHITE (SFFD), an JURY TRIAL DEMANDED

individual, ANTENOR MOLLOY (SFFD), an
imdividual, ANTHONY ROBINSON (SFFD), an
mdividual, TOM SIRAGUSA (SFFD), an
individual, MARK GONZALES (SFFD), an
mdividual, JOHN LITTLEFIELD (SFO), an
individual, TRYG MCCQY (SFO), an individual,
JOHN L MARTIN (SFO), an individual,
DENISE SCHMITT(SFPD), an individual,
CHRISTINE EMMONS (SFFD), an individual,
ROGER PHILLIPS (SFFD), an mdividual,
MICHELLE GRINDSTAFF (SFFD), an
mdividual, Michael Kirk (SFFD), an individual,
HENRY CHOY (SFO), an individual, DERRICK
LEE (SFPD), an individual, JIMMY YEE
(SFFD), an individual, and DOES 1 through 100,

Defendants
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Plamntiffs Gan Ye and X1ao Yun Zheng (collectively “Plantiffs”), mdividually and as the
herrs and successors mn interest of Ye Meng Yuan, deceased, by and through their attorneys,
respectfully allege agamst defendants The City and County of San Francisco, Joanne Hayes-

White, Fire Chief, San Francisco Fire Department, Antenor Molloy, EMS Captain, San

' Francisco Fire Department (Airport Division), Anthony Robinson, Captain, San Francisco Fire

Department (Airport Division); Tom Siragusa, Assistant Chief, San Francisco Fire Department,
Mark Gonzales, Deputy Chuef of Operations, San Francisco Fire Department, John Littlefield,
Deputy Director of Operations, San Francisco Airport, Tryg McCoy, Chief Operating Officer,
San Francisco Airport, John L Martin, Airport Director, San Francisco Airport, Denise Schimutt,
Deputy Chief, San Francisco Police Department (Airport Bureau), Christine Emmons,
Lieutenant, San Francisco Fire Department, Roger Phillips, Firefighter, San Francisco Fire
Department (Airport Division), Jimmy Yee, Firefighter, San Francisco Fire Department (Airport
Division), Michelle Grindstaff, Firefighter, San Francisco Fire Department (Airport Division),
Michacl Kirk, Firefighter/Paramedic, San Francisco Fire Department (Airport Division), Henry
Choy, Atrport Safety Officer, San Francisco International Arrport (Operations Davision); Derrick

Lee, Police Officer, San Francisco Police Department (Arrport Bureau), and DOES 1 through
100 (collectively, “Defendants™) as follows

I. NATURE OF THE ACTION

1. This action arises from the tragic and avoidable death of Plaintiffs’ 16-year-old
daughter Ye Meng Yuan, who perished after the crash of Asiana Airlines Elight No OZ 214
(“Flight 214”). Ye Meng Yuan was njured during the crash and abandoned by several rescue
workers employed by the City and County of San Francisco (the “City and County”) The rescue
workers observed Ye Meng Yuan lying helpless on the ground but, mexplicably, failed to
evaluate her condition, treat her, mark her location, or remove her from the perilous location
where she lay curled n the “fetal position”. Minutes later, Ye Meng Yuan was run over by two

separate aircraft rescue firefighting (“ARFF”) velicles Plamtiffs assert survival and wrongful
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death claims agamst Defendants, and seck, among other things, statutory and compensatory
damages authorized under the California Government Claims Act and all recoverable damages
permitied under 42 U S C § 1983 for the deprivation of nights secured by the Constitution and
the laws of the Umted States

. THE PARTIES

2 Plamntiff Gan Ye 1s the natural father, successor 1n nterest, and heir of Ye Meng
Yuan

3. Plaintiff X1ao Yun Zheng 1s the natural mother, successor mn mterest, and heir of
Ye Meng Yuan

4 Plaintiffs assert wrongful death claims for the death of Ye Meng Yuan pursuant to

Code of Civil Procedure section 377 60, ef seq  Ye Meng Yuan has no other beneficiarics, hers,

or successors 1 1nterest pursuant to Code of Civil Procedure section 377 60, et seq

{ Additionally, as successors 1n interests, Plaintiffs assert survivor claims on behalf of Ye Meng

Yuan, pursuant to Code of Crvil Procedure sections 377 10, ct seq Attached hereto 1s the
Plamnt:ffs’ Declaration, filed in compliance with the provisions of Califormia Code of Civil
Procedure section 377 32

5 Defendant City and County of San Francisco 1s a municipal body and county of

| the State of California, with the capacity to sue and be sued At all times relevant to the facts
| alleged, the City and County was responsible for assuring that its own actions, omissions,
policies, procedures, practices and customs and those of 1ts employees, contractors, agents,

: departments, divisions and agencies complied with all applicable laws and duties The San

Francisco International Aurport (the “Airport” or “*SFO”), the San Francisco Fire Department
(“SFFD”), and the San Francisco Police Department (“SFPD”), are separate City and County
departments, which are under the control of the City and County

6 At all relevant trimes, defendant Lt Christine Emmons (“Emmons”) was a
firefighter, paramedic and/or emergency medical technician employed by the City and County as

a member of the SFFD, and was acting within the course and scope of her employment and
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under color of law  Decfendant Emmons 1s sued 1n her personal capacity On information and
belief, defendant Emmons 1s a citizen of the State of California.

7 At all relevant tumes, defendant Roger Phillips (“Phullips™) was a firefighter,
paramedic and/or emergency medical technician employed by the City and County as a member
of the SFFD, and was acting within the course and scope of his employment and under color of

law Defendant Phillips 1s sued i his personal capacity On information and belief, defendant

] Phillips 1s a citizen of the State of California

8 At all relevant times, defendant Jimmy Yee (“Yee”) was a firefighter, paramedic

and/or emergency medical techmcian employed by the City and County as a member of the

| SFFD, and was acting within the coutse and scope of his employment and under color of law.

Defendant Yee 1s sued m his personal capacity On mformation and belief, defendant Yee 1s a
citizen of the State of California.

9 At all relevant tumes, defendant Michelle Grindstaff (“Grindstaff”) was a
firefighter, paramedic and/or emergency medical technician employed by the City and County as
a member of the SFFD, and was acting within the course and scope of her employment and
under color of law Defendant Grindstaff 1s sued in her personal capacity On information and
belief, defendant Grindstaff 1s a citizen of the State of California

10 At all relevant times, defendant Michael Kirk (“Kirk”) was a firefighter,
paramedic and/or emergency medical technician employed by the City and County as a member
of the SFFD, and was acting within the course and scope of his employment and under color of
law Defendant Kirk 1s sued i Iis personal capacity On information and belief, defendant Kirk
is a citizen of the State of Califorma

11 At all relevant times, defendant Henry Choy (“Choy™) was employed by the City
and County as a San Francisco Arport airfield safety officer, and was acting within the course
and scope of his employment and under color of law Defendant Choy is sued 1n his personal

capacity On information and belief, defendant Choy 1s a citizen of the State of Califorma.
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12 At all relevant times, defendant Derrick Lee (“Lee”) was a Police Officer
employed by the City and County as a member of the San Francisco Police Department, and was
acting wathin the course and scope of his employment and under color of law  Defendant Lee 1s

sued 1 his personal capacity On informatton and belief, defendant Lec 1s a citizen of the State

of Californa.

13 At all relevant times, defendant Antenor Molloy (“Malloy’) was employed by the

City and County as the Emergency Medical Services Captain with the SFFD and was acting

i within the course and scope of his employment and under color of law  On information and

belief, defendant Malloy was acting as a managing agent for the City and County and was

responsible for the admimstration, superviston, hiring, and/or traiming of persons, agents and

- employees working for the SFFD, including 1n the area of emergency medical services On

mformation and belief, defendant Malloy 1s a citizen of the State of Califorma

14 At all relevant times, defendant Anthony Robinson (“Robinson”) was employed
by the City and County as a Fire Captaimn with the SFFD and was acting within the course and
scope of his employment and under color of law  On information and belief, defendant
Robson was acting as a managing agent for the City and County and was responsible for the
admimistration, supervision, hiring, and/or traimng of persons, agents and cmployees working for

the SFFD, mncluding 1n the area of emergency medical services On information and belief,

| defendant Robinson 1s a citizen of the State of California

15 At all relevant times, defendant Tom Siragusa (“Siragusa”) was employed by the
City and County as the Assistant Chief with the SFFD and was acting within the course and
scope of his employment and under color of law. On information and behef, defendant Siragusa
was acting as a managing agent for the City and County and was responsible for the

administration, supervision, hiring, and/or tramning of persons, agents and employees working for

| the SFFD, including 1n the area of emergency medical services On mformation and belief,

defendant Siragusa 1s a citizen of the State of California.
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16 At all relevant times, defendant Mark Gonzales (“Gonzales™) was employed by
the City and County as the Deputy Chuef of Operations with the SFFD and was acting within the
course and scope of his employment and under color of law  On mformation and belief,
defendant Gonzales was acting as a managing agent for the City and County and was responsible
for the admimstration, supervision, hinng, and/or traiming of persons, agents and employees
working for the SFFD, including 1n the arca of cmergency medical services On mformation and
belief, defendant Gonzales 1s a citizen of the State of California

17 At all relevant times, defendant Joanne Hayes-White (“White™) was employed by
the City and County as the Chief of the SFFD and was acting within the course and scope of her
employment and under color of law  On mformation and belief, defendant Hayes-White was
acting as a managing agent for the City and County and was responsible for the admmistration,
supervision, hiring, and/or tramung of persons, agents and employees working for the SFFD,
mncluding i the area of emergency medical services On information and belief, defendant
Hayes-White 1s a citizen of the State of California

18 At all relevant trmes, defendant John Littlefield (“Littlefield””) was employed by
the City and County as the Deputy Director of Operations for the San Francisco Aarport and was
acting within the course and scope of his employment and under color of law  On mformation
and belief, defendant Lattlefield was acting as a managing agent for the City and County and was
responsible for the administration, supervision, hiring, and/or training of persons, agents and
employces working for the Amrport, mcluding in the area of emergency medical services. On
mformation and belief, defendant Littlefield 1s a citizen of the State of California

19 Atall relevant times, defendant Tryg McCoy (“McCoy”) was employed by the
City and County as the Chief Operating Officer with the San Francisco Airport and was acting
within the course and scope of his employment and under color of law  On mformation and
belief, defendant McCoy was acting as a managing agent for the Crty and County and was

responsible for the administration, supervision, hiring, and/or traming of persons, agents and
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employees working for the Airport, including in the area of emcrgency medical services On
information and behef, defendant McCoy 1s a citizen of the State of Caiiforma

20. At all relevant times, defendant John L. Martin (“Martin”) was employed by the
City and County as the Airport Director of the San Francisco Airport and was acting within the
course and scope of his employment and under color of law  On information and belief,
defendant Martin was acting as a managing agent for the City and County and was responsible
for the administration, supervision, hiring, and/or training of persons, agents and employees
working for the Airport, including 1n the area of emergency medical services On mnformation
and belief, defendant Martin 1s a citizen of the State of Califormia

21 At all relevant times, defendant Denise Schmitt (“Schmitt””) was employed by the

City and County as the Deputy Chief with the SFPD Arrport Bureau and was acting within the

course and scope of her employment and under color of law  On information and belief,
| defendant Schmitt was acting as a managing agent for the City and County and was responsible

| for the administration, supervision, hining, and/or traming of persons, agents and employees

working for the SFPD, including 1n the area of emergency medical services On information and
belief, defendant Schmitt is a citizen of the State of Califorma
22 Plamntiffs are unaware of the true names and capacities, whether mdividual,

corporate, associate, or otherwise, of defendants sued herein as DOES 1 through 100, inclusive,

i and therefore sue said defendants by such fictitious names Plamtiffs will seck leave of the Court

to amend this complaint to allege the true names and capacities of said fictitiously named
defendants when the same have been ascertained

23 At all times relevant, Defendants, including DOES 1 through 100, were
employees, independent contractors, and duly appomted, qualified, and acting deputies, police
officers, firefighters, airport or airfield security officers, elected officials, emergency medical
techmecians, paramedics, medical providers, nurses, and/or other agents of the City and County
acting within the course and scope of their employment and/or agency. Each of the Defendants

caused the death of Ye Meng Yuan, and/or 1s responsible for the conduct (including omissions)
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and breaches described heremn which resulted n or led to the death of Ye Meng Yuan by, wnfer

' alia, personally participating 1n the conduct, or acting jomntly and 1n concert with others who did

so, by authonzing, acquiescing, or failing to take action to prevent the unlawful conduct by
promulgating policies and procedures pursuant to which the conduct occurred, by faihing and
refusing, with deliberate indifference to the nghts of Plamntiffs and Ye Meng Yuan, to imtiate and
maintain adequate training, supervision, and staffing, by failing to maintain proper and adequate
policies, procedures, customs and protocols; and by ratifying such conduct.

24 Whenever and wherever reference 1s made 1n this Complaint to any act by

Defendants, such allegations and references shall also be deemed to mean the acts and failures to

. act of each Defendant, including Does 1 through 100, individually, jomtly, and/or severally

Y. PRELIMINARY ALTEGATIONS

25 Plamntiffs filed a timely claim pursuant to Gov Code sections 910 et seq. on
January 2, 2014, and a timely amendment was filed on January 6, 2014 (the “Claim™) By letter
dated February 14, 2014, the Claim was rejected This action has been filed within the time
allowed by Government Code section 945 6

26 This action s brought 1 accord with the Government Claims Act, including
Government Code sections 815 et seq , 820 et seq , 910 et seq , and 950 et seq It 1s also bemng
brought under 42 U S.C § 1983, and under the 14th Amendment of the United States
Constitution  Plamtiffs further allege that the conduct of each Defendant deprived Ye Meng

Yuan of her constitutional right to life, and to her constitutional right to medical care for sertous

. medical needs and deprived Plaintiffs of their constitutional right to famly relations

27.  The amount 1n controversy 1s 1 excess of the jurisdictional mmimum of this
Court.

28 This Court has subject matter junisdiction over all causes of action asserted herein
pursuant to the Califorma Constitution, Article VI, Section 10, and by virtue of Defendants’

violations of California law.
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29 This Court also has concurrent jurisdiction over claims brought under 42 U S C §
1983.

30.  Venue s proper in this County because many of the acts, omissions and
transactions complaimed of occurred in County. On mformation and belief, some of the

Defendants reside 1n this County

IV.FACTS

A. The San Francisco Airport (SFQ)

31 The Arrport 1s a department of the City and County but 1s located outside of San
Francisco’s geographic boundaries, in an unincorporated area of San Mateo County. SFO 1s the
largest airport 1n northern Califorma and accommodates both international and domestic flights.
SFO 1s bounded by the San Francisco Bay to the north and east and by land to the west and
south

32.  The SFFD staffs the SFFD-Airport Bureau (“SFFD-AB”) under an nter-
departmental work order agreement between the Airport and the SFFD The SFFD Chief
appoints an Assistant Deputy Chief to manage the SFFD-AB, comprised of three firehouses on
Aarport property with ARFF personnel dedicated not only to Airport fire fighting but also to
providing emergency medical services (“EMS”) and emergency response and rescue The
SFFD-AB 1s also responsible for responding to medical calls for service on Arport property and
1s staffed with paramedic personnel, who are constantly on duty at SFO The SFFD-AB
I responds to numerous medical calls each month

33 The SFPD staffs the Airport Bureau of the San Francisco Police Department
(“SFPD-AB”) Within the Bureau, there are a number of specialized police umts dedicated to
the safety and security of the Awrport. The SFPD-AB plays a crucial role 1n the Airport’s

emergency response capabilities
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| B. Ye Meng Yuan Survived The Crash Of Flight 214 And Evacuated The
: Aircraft

34 On July 6, 2013, Asiana Airlines Flight No OZ 214 (*Flight 214”) departed
Incheon International Airport, South Korea, destined for San Francisco International Arport
' (“SFO”) Fhight 214 was conducted with a BOEING 777-200ER aircraft (the “Arrcraft™) and
| had 307 passengers and crew-members on board Ye Meng Yuan was one of the passengers

35.  Atapproxmmately 11 27 am PDT on July 6, 2013, the Aircraft operated as Flight
214 struck the sea wall just short of the threshold of runway 28L during the final seconds of 1ts
attempted landing (the “Crash™) After impact with the sea wall, the Aircraft crash landed on
Runway 28L and eventually came to rest approximately 2400 feet from the sea wall to the left of
- the runway

36 On information and belief, Ye Meng Yuan was not ejected during the accident
sequence, and her death was not caused by being gjected from the Aircraft. On information and
belief, erther on her own or with assistance, Ye Meng Yuan exited the Aircraft down one of the
two slide ramps on the left side of the Awrcraft Thereafter, she was observed by multiple City
and County employees, agents and/or contractors on the ground near a paved cart road 1n front of

the Aircraft’s “2L” shide

C. Ye Meng Yuan Was Abandoned, Left For Dead, And Run Over By Two
Separate “ARFF Units”

37 The City and County employees, agents and/or contractors responsible for
providing emergency medical services at the Airport and who responded to the Crash are
collectively and individually referred to herein as “Rescue Workers ” The Rescue Workers
include members of the SFFD, the SFPD, Airfield Safety Officers for the Airport (“ASOs”),
and/or other agencies, departments, and divisions of the City and County

38 Ye Meng Yuan remained 1n the same location near the cart road, when several of
the Rescue Workers spotted her, including, but not limited to, defendants Choy (ASO),
Gnindstaff (SFFD), Kirk (SFFD), Lee (SFPD), Emmons (SFFD), Phillips (SFFD), Yee (SFFD),

and Does 1 through 50 (collectively, the “Rescue Worker Defendants™). These Rescue Worker
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Defendants were on the ground and/or n ARFF vehicles when they spotted Ye Meng Yuan, and
at least some were, at the nme, performing solely medical, rescue and triage operations.

39 Inexplicably, the Rescue Worker Defendants failed to assess Ye Meng Yuan,
communicate her location to command, and failed to mark her location They did not take her
pulse They did not check her breathing. They failed to conduct any triage on her. They failed
to move her to a safe location and abandoned her in a hazardous position that subjected her to
grave risk of harm.

40 According to witness statements, SFFD firefighter Phullips, riding on “ARFF Unit
107, observed Ye Meng Yuan while approaching the Awrcraft Phillips left the vehicle to help the
dniver, Jimmy Yee, maneuver “ARFF Unit 10” around Ye Meng Yuan Phillips alerted Emmons
that a passcnger was lying mn the field, but Emmons responded that they should move on.

41.  Approximately 15 minutes after Ye Meng Yuan was seen lying helpless on the
ground 1n the fetal position by Phillips and the other Rescue Worker Defendants and after
Emmons had been mnformed that she was lying on the ground, “ARFF Umit 10” ran her over At
the time of impact, Ye Meng Yuan was 1n the same location where the Rescue Worker
Defendants had initially observed her When “ARFF Umt 10” ran over Ye Meng Yuan, the
impact caused devastating blunt force traumatic injuries that resulted 1n her untimely death At
the time she was run over by “ARFF Unit 10,” all of the other passengers and crew members
who were on board Flight 214 had been removed from the close proxmmty of the Aircraft and
were outside any zone of danger

42, Elyse Duckett 1s an SFFD firefighter assigned to the Airport Drvision. Duckett
maneuvered “ARFF Unit 37" into the area where Ye Meng Yuan was located shortly after
“ARFF Unit 10” had run over and killed Ye Meng Yuan At the time, Ye Meng Yuan's remains

were still unmarked and obscured by foam put down by “ARFF Umit 10.” Duckett then ran over

! Ye Meng Yuan m “ARFF Unit 37 ° while departing the scene of the Crash On information and

belief, at the time Ye Meng Yuan was struck by “ARFF Unit 37,” she was already deceased as a

result of having been run over by “ARFF Unit 10”
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43 The Rescue Worker Defendants created a danger to Ye Meng Yuan, and/or
rendered her more vulnerable to existing danger They knew Ye Meng Yuan was 1n a location
close to the Aircraft where she Jay non-ambulatory and unable to protect herself In deliberate
indifference to known and obvious dangers, the Rescue Worker Defendants failed to examine Ye
Meng Yuan, failed to ensure she was placed or moved to a safe location, failed to mark her
location, failed to protect her from moving vehicles 1n the vicimty of the Aircraft where 1t was
known that vehicles would be travehng, failed to alert commanders at the scene, failed to
properly assess and triage Ye Meng Yuan, failed to properly treat Ye Meng Yuan; and
abandoned Ye Meng Yuan 1n a pertlous location

D. The City And County Deliberately Ignored {{s Responsibility To Provide
Mandated Training And Supervision For Airport Emereency Medical
Services Personnel

44 Personnel with supervisory and command duties and/or policymakers, who wete
employees or independent contractors of the City and County, recklessly, and with deliberate
indifference to known and obvious dangers, failed to ensure that both they and the rank and file
responders recerved proper traming, failed to implement appropnate procedures, and violated

legally required mandates designed to prevent injury and death during aircraft emergencies.

. Such mdividuals include defendants Molloy, EMS Captain, SFFD, Robimnson, Captain, SFFD,

Siragusa, Assistant Chef, SFFD, Martin, Aurport Director, SFO, McCoy, Chief Operating
Officer, SFO, Gonzales, Deputy Chief of Operations, SFFD, Luttlefield, Deputy Director of
Opcrations, SFO, Schmitt, Deputy Chief, SFPD (Airport Bureau); Hayes-White, Chief of

- Department, SFI'D, and Does 51-95 (collectively and individually, the “Supervisor

Defendants™)
45 The SFO, SFFD, and SFPD, and/or other departments, agencies and divisions of

the City and County are responsible for providing emergency medical services for SFO, pursuant

| to the Federal Aviation Regulations, 14 C.F R. Part 139 (“Part 139"), and must certify

comphliance with certain provisions of Part 139 Part 139 constitutes an enactment within the

meaning of Government Code Section 815.6
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46 Part 139 requires the Federal Aviation Administration (“FAA”) to 1ssue airport
operating certificates to aiwrports, such as SFO. To obtam a certificate, an airport must agree to
certain operational and safety standards and provide for such things as aircraft rescue and
firefighting services and adequate rescue equipment. Airport Operating Certificates serve to
ensure safety 1 air transportation to passengers, such as Ye Meng Yuan

47 Part 139 319 imposed on the City and County, acting by and through its
departments and/or divisions, including SFO, SFED, SFPD, a duty to ensure, inter ala, the
following

a All rescue personnel are properly tramned. Such personnel must be trained prior to
mutial performance of rescue and firefighting duties and receive recurrent mnstruction
every 12 consecutive calendar months The currniculum for mitial and recurrent
traiming must include emergency aircraft evacuation assistance and familianzation
with firefighters’ duties under the airport emergency plan,

b All rescue and firefighting personnel must participate 1 at least one live-fire drill
prior to mitial performance of rescue and firefighting duties and every 12 consecutive
calendar months thereafter, and

¢ Rescue and firefighting personnel must be properly trained 1n basic emergency
medical services, with a minimum 40 hours 1n length, which cover, among other
things, the following topics (1) Cardiopulmonary resuscitation, (11) Shock, (111)
Primary patient survey, (1v) Moving patients, and (v) Triage

48 Additionally, Part 139 325 requires SFO, 1n cooperation and conjunction with the
SFFD and SFPD, to develop and maintain an emergency plan (the “Emergency Plan™) designed
to mimimize personal injury 1n an emergency The plan must include the following.

a appropriate procedures for responding to emergencies such as arcraft incidents and

accidents;
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b. appropnate provisions for medical services, including transportation and medical
assistance for the largest passenger carrying aircrafts that the airport can reasonably
expect to serve, and

c. appropnate proccdures to ensure proper training for emergency responders

49 On mformation and belief, 1in deliberate indifference to known and obvious

- dangers, the City and County, Supervisor Defendants, and Does 96-100 breached the foregoing

mandatory duties and the Emergency Plan by failing to ensure that rescue and firefighting

- personnel were properly trained 1n accordance with the requirements described above and failing

to wnstitute procedures for ensuring proper emergency medical services, assessment, rescue,

- triage and treatment in response to the Crash  Among other things, on information and belzef,
- the City and County, Supervisor Defendants, and Does 96-100 had a policy of forbidding the

| removal of those believed to be deceased from an accident scene for investigative purposes,

without requiring basic procedures to determine whether an accident victim 1s, 1 fact, dead

V. CAUSES OF ACTION

FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION

(For Wrongful Death Based on Negligence and/or Gross Negligence as Authorized Under
the Government Claims Act,
By Plaintiffs Against All Defendants)

50 Plainti1ffs incorporate by reference as though fully stated herein all of the

| foregoing paragraphs

51 The City and County, acting by and through various of its departments, agencies
and/or divisions, including, but not limited to SFFD, SFPD and SFO are responsible for
providing, inter alia, emergency medical services for the San Francisco International Airport

(“SFO”), pursuant to, inter alia, 14 CF.R § 139.319 With SFO being the tenth busiest airport

| in the Umted States, they are tasked with ensuring the protection of over half a million

passengers each week.

52 At all relevant times mentioned above, the Rescue Worker Defendants were

] employees and/or independent contractors who responded to the Crash
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53 At all relevant times, the Supervisor Defendants were employees and/or
mdependent contractors who had supervisory, traiming, and command duties with regard to
providing emergency medical services and rescue operations at the Airport

54 At all relevant times, the Supervisor Defendants and the Rescue Workers were
acting within the scope of their employment and/or agency for the City and County The City
and County 1s vicariously liable for the misconduct, negligence, recklessness, and gross
negligence of 1ts agents and employees, pursuant to, inter alta, Government Code sections 815 2
and 815 4

55 The Rescue Worker Defendants and the Supervisor Defendants are also
personally hable for their acts and omissions described herein

56, At all relevant times mentioned above, the Rescue Worker Defendants and the
Supervisor Defendants owed Ye Meng Yuan and Plaintiffs a duty to, wter alia, exercise
reasonable and ordinary care and to avoid injury to Ye Meng Yuan, to provide rescue and
medical services m a safe and reasonable manner, and to otherwise coordinate response efforts 1n
a proper, safe, careful and reasonable manner

57 The Rescuc Worker Defendants and each of them breached their duty of care to
Ye Meng Yuan and Plaintiffs and acted with deliberate indifference to known and obvious
dangers, with a lack of due or proper care and/or with an extreme departure from what a
reasonably careful person would do 1n the same situation to prevent harm to oneself or to others,
through, wter alia, the following acts and omissions, which are set forth 1n greater detail above

a Failing to ensure she was placed 1n a safe location;

b Failing to assess and treat Ye Meng Yuan,

c. Failing to remove Ye Meng Yuan from a hazardous location 1 the vicimity of the
Aurcraft, where they knew vehicles would be operating and traversing,

d Failing to mark Ye Meng Yuan's presence and/or location and/or protect her from

vehicles i the area,
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¢ Deliberately and knowingly abandoning Ye Meng Yuan, who was unable to
protect herself, 1n a hazardous location, where they knew she would be 1n harm’s
way m the vicimty of the operations that mnvolved vehicles, and
f Failing to coordinate response efforts m a proper, safe, careful and reasonable
manner
58 Also, the Supervisor Defendants, as set forth above, recklessly, and/or
negligently, in breach of their duty of care, failed to ensure that both they and the rank and file
responders recerved proper training and failed to implement appropnate and federally mandated
procedures to prevent myury and death during aircraft emergencies, as set forth in Paragraphs 44
through 49, which are incorporated herein  Among other things, they acted with a lack of due or
proper care, 1n deliberate indifference to known and obvious dangers, and/or with an extreme
departure from what a reasonably careful person would do in the same situation to prevent harm
to oneself or to others, through, inter alia, the following acts and omissions
a Failing to implement appropnate training and procedures to 1dentify, asscss, treat,
and triage myured victims,
b Failing to implement appropriate traiang and policies to 1dentify, communicate
the location of, and track mnjured victims, and
¢ Failing to implement appropriate traimng and procedures to assess, mark, protect,
treat, and/or move passengers, like Ye Meng Yuan, to a safe location

59 As a direct and proximate result of the negligence, carelessness, gross negligence,

| recklessness, deliberate indifference to known and obvious dangers, and/or other wrongful acts

and/or omissions of the Rescue Worker Defendants and the Supervisor Defendants, Ye Meng
Yuan suffered multiple blunt injuries from being run over by ARFF Umit 10, causing her death
60 As aresult of Ye Meng Yuan’s death, Plamntiffs sustained pecumary and non-
pecuniary losses, including, without limitation, grief, loss of society, loss of support, services,
care, comfort, affection, moral support, solace, and other losses for which recovery 1s authorized

under applicable law.

16

COMPLAINT I'OR DAMAGES



10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

61 As a further direct result of Ye Meng Yuan’s death, Plaintiffs incurred expenses

for funeral, bunal, and other related costs 1n an amount to be determmed at triaj

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION
(For Wrongful Death Based on Breached Mandatory Duties Imposed by Enactment, as

Authorized Under the Government Claims Act,
By Plaintiffs Against Defendant the City and County, the Supervisor Defendants, and
DOES 96-100)

62 Plaintiffs mcorporate by reference as though fully stated herern all of the
foregoing paragraphs

63 Pursuant to Government Code section 815 6, a public entity 1s liable for the
breach of mandatory duty imposed by cnactment by, among other things statutes or regulations

64 The SFO, SFFD, and SFPD, the Supervisor Defendants and/or other departments,
agencies and divisions of the City and County and Does 96-100 are responsible for providing
emergency medical services for SFO, pursuant to the Federal Aviation Regulations, 14 C F R,
Part 139 (“Part 139”), and must certify compliance with certain provisions of Part 139. Part 139
constitutes an enactment within the meaning of Government Code Section 815 6

65 As set forth i Paragraphs 44 through 49 above, 1n deliberate indifference to
known and obvious dangers, the SFO, SFPD, the SFFD, the City and County, the Supervisor
Defendants, and Does 96-100 breached their mandatory duties under Part 139 and the
Emergency Plan.

66 As a direct and proximate result of the breach of such duties set forth above, Ye
Meng Yuan was mjured and killed, causing Plaintiffs’ damages and losses

67 As aresult of Ye Meng Yuan’s death, Plamntiffs sustamed pecuniary and non-
pecuniary losses, mncluding, without limitation, grief, loss of society, loss of support, services,
care, comfort, affection, moral support, solace, and other losses for which recovery 1s authorized
under applicable law

68 As a further durect result of Ye Meng Yuan’s death, Plamntiffs mcurred expenses

for funeral, bunal, and other related costs 1n an amount to be determined at trial.
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THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION
(For Survival Claims Based on Negligence and/or Gross Negligence as Authorized Under

the Government Claims Act,
By Plaintiffs Against All Defendants)

69 Plaint:ffs incorporate by reference as though fully stated herein all of the
foregoing paragraphs

70 Plamtiffs are the sole heirs, beneficiaries, and successors 1n interest of Ye Meng
Yuan

71 Plaintiffs imncorporate Paragraphs 51 through 59 as though fully set forth herein.

72. As a direct and proximate 1esult of the foregoing, acts and failures to act, Ye
Meng Yuan suffered personal injury, pain and suffering, property loss, grave and fatal injuries,
and other losses for which recovery 1s authorized under applicable law

73. Pursuant to Code of Civil Procedure section 377 34, Plantiffs are seeking to
recover for all losses or damages that Ye Meng Yuan sustained or incurred before death, 1n an

amount to be determined at tnal

FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION
(For Survival Claim Based on Breached Mandatory Duties Imposed by Enactment, as

Authorized Under the Government Claims Act,
By Plaintiffs Against Defendant the City and County, the Supervisor Defendants, and
DOES 96-100)

74 Plaint1ffs incorporate by reference as though fully stated herein all of the
foregoing paragraphs

75 Plamtiffs are the sole hewrs, beneficiaries, and successors in interest of Ye Meng
Yuan

76 Plaint1ffs incorporate Paragraphs 63 through 66 as though fully set forth herein

77.  As adirect and proximate result of the foregoingYe Meng Yuan suffered personal

myury, pan and suffering, property loss, grave and fatal injuries, and other losses for which

recovery 1s authonzed under applicable law.
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| 78 Pursuant to Code of Civil Procedure section 377.34, Plaintiffs are seeking to
recover for all losses or damages that Ye Meng Yuan sustained or mcurred before death, 1n an

amount to be determined at trial.

: FIFTH CAUSE OF ACTION
| (For Violation of Constitutional and Federally Protected Rights and Wrongful Death,

‘ o as Authm:ized _Un_der 42 U.S.C. § 1983,

| By Plaintiffs Against the Rescue Worker Defendants)

79 Plaintiffs mcorporate by reference as though fully stated heremn all of the

! foregoing paragraphs

80 As aresult of the acts set forth herein, Plantiffs and Ye Meng Yuan were

‘ subjected to deprivation of rights by the Rescue Worker Defendants, which rights include, but

| are not linuted to, privileges and immmunities secured to Plaintiffs and Ye Meng Yuan by the

| Constitution and laws of the Umted States By reason of such acts, the Rescue Worker
Defendants have violated the constitutional rights and liberty interests of Plamtiffs and Ye Meng
" Yuan, which are protected under, among other things, the 14th Amendment’s prohibition agamnst
| depriving a person of life and family relationships without due process of law

81 At all relevant times, the Rescue Worker Defendants were acting under color of

| law and of statutes, or ordinances, regulations, customs, and usages of the law of the United
! States, State of California, and of the City and County
" 82 The Rescue Worker Defendants are personally hable for their acts and omissions
‘: described herein
| 83 At all relevant times, the Rescue Woiker Defendants were responsible for, mnter
‘ alia, emergency medical services for SFO and required to provide such services in the event of a
‘: large passenger aircraft incident.

84 At all relevant times mentioned above, the Rescue Worker Defendants and the
Supervisor Defendants owed Ye Meng Yuan and Plamntiffs a duty to, inter alia, exercise

reasonable and ordmary care and to avoid injury to Ye Meng Yuan, to provide rescue and
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medical services 1n a safe and reasonable manner, and to otherwise coordinate response efforts 1n
a proper, safe, careful and reasonable manner
85 The Rescue Worker Defendants and each of them breached their duty of care to

Ye Meng Yuan and Plamntiffs and acted recklessly and/or in callous or deliberate indifference to

known and obvious dangers, with a lack of due or proper care and/or with an extreme departure

from what a reasonably careful person would do in the same situation to prevent harm to oneself
or to others, through, inter alia, the following acts and omissions, which are set forth 1n greater

detail above

o]

Failing to ensure Ye Meng Yuan was placed 1n a safe location,
b Failing to assess and treat Ye Meng Yuan,
¢ Failing to remove Ye Meng Yuan from a hazardous location 1n the vicimty of the
Aarcraft, where they knew vehicles would be operating and traveising,
d Failing to mark Ye Meng Yuan’s presence and/or location and/or protect her from
vehicles in the area, and
e Deliberately and knowngly abandoming Ye Meng Yuan, who was unable to
protect herself, 1n a hazardous location where they knew she would be in harm’s
way 1n the vicimty of the operations that involved vehicles
86. At all times herein mentioned, the Rescue Worker Defendants knew, or should

have known, of Ye Meng Yuan’s mjuries and perilous condition and location; were deliberately

- indifferent to them, 1gnored them, and failed to provide access to and delivery of medical care,

assessment, triage, and attention toYe Meng Yuan

87 The conduct of the Rescue Workers was so egregious and outrageous and
contrary to the night to life implicit 1n ordered liberty and common decency so as to shock the
conscious of the commumty.

88 Further, each of the Rescue Worker Defendants delayed, demed, and deprived Ye

| Meng Yuan of medical care and attention for her mjuries and condition and abandoned her in a

dangerous situation in such a manner resulting in harm, injury, and death.
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89 As a direct result of the Rescue Worker Defendants’ deliberate indifference and
conduct, Ye Meng Yuan was deprived of the necessary and indicated medical intervention, care,
treatment, was abandoned 1n a perilous location, and suffered serious myuries and death; and, as
a result of the mjury, pain, and suffering Ye Meng Yuan suffered prior to her death, Plamtiffs
claim damages for loss of life and pan and suffering prior to Ye Meng Yuan’s death as a
survivor action

90.  As aresult of the foregoing violations which caused and/or contributed to the
death of Ye Meng Yuan, Plaintiffs sustamed pecumary and non-pecuniary losses, ncluding,
without limitation, grief, loss of society, loss of support, services, care, comfort, affection, moral
support, solace and other losses for which recovery 1s authonzed under applicable law

91. As a further direct result of Ye Meng Yuan'’s death, Plaintiffs incurred expenses
for funeral, burial, attorney’s fees, and seck recovery for all damages authorized by law 1n an
amount to be determined at trial

SIXTH CAUSE OF ACTION

(For Violation of Constitutional and Federally Protected Rights and Wrongful Death,
as Authorized Under 42 U.S.C. § 1983, For a Policy, Custom, or Practice, I ailing to Train
and Supervise, and Violations of Statutory Duty Causing Constitutional Violations
By Plaintiffs Against Defendant City and County, the Supervisor Defendants and DOES 96
- 100)

92. Plamtiffs incorporate by reference as thought fully set forth heremn all of the
foregoing paragraphs.

93 As aresult of the acts set forth herein, Plaintiffs and Ye Meng Yuan were

subjected to deprivation of nights by the defendant City and County, the Supervisor Defendants,

and Does 96 through 100 (collectively and individually, the “City and County Defendants™),
which rights include, but are not limited to, privileges and immunities secured to Plamntiffs and
Ye Meng Yuan by the Constitution and laws of the United States By reason of such acts, the
City and County Defendants have violated the constitutional rights and liberty interests of

Plamtiffs and Ye Meng Yuan, which are protected under, among other things, the 14th
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Amendment’s prohibition against depriving a person of life and fanuly relationships without due
process of law

94 At all relevant times, the City and County Defendants were acting under color of
law and of statutes, or ordinances, regulations, customs, and usages of the law of the United
States, State of California, and of the City and County.

95 The City and County Defendants, through their agents, servants, and employees,
and/or subordnates had the duty and responstbility for the traming and supervision of the Rescue
Workers, mcluding the Rescue Worker Defendants, regarding emergency medical services
following passenger aircraft incidents This mcludes, but 1s not limited to, traming in
cardiopulmonary resuscitation, shock, primary patient survey, moving patients, and triage.

96 Additionally, the City and County Defendants were required to devclop and
mamntain the Emergency Plan, as set forth in Paragraph 44 through 49 above, des: gned to
mimmize mjury or death in an emergency

97 At all relevant times, the City and County Defendants knew or should have

| known that the Rescue Workers, mcluding the Rescue Worker Defendants, would be faced with

situations smular to the circumstances and facts herctofore alleged, wherein the Rescue Workers
would be required to respond to emergencies, such as aircraft incidents and accidents mvolving
the large passenger carrying aircrafts, and absent appropnate traming, supervision and
procedures, mjury and death would be likely to occur

98 The City and County Defendants failed to provide, under the color of State law,
adequate tranng to the Recue Workers, including the Rescue Worker Defendants, and to
unplement necessary procedures and methods to avoid mjury and death to an myured passenger
1n a large arrcraft accident, including but not limited to the following.

a the proper and reasonable procedures for assessing an accident scene and ensurin g
that injured passengers are removed from the immediate threat of harm,

b the proper and reasonable procedures for assessing mnjured passengers,
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¢ the proper and reasonable procedures for triage and 1dentifying mjured
passengers,

d  the proper and reasonable procedures to for conducting cardiopulmonary
resuscitation,

e the proper and reasonable procedures for treating shock, and

f  the proper and 1easonable procedures for communicating and marking the
location of 1njured passengers

99.  Atall relevant times, the City and County Defendants had a constitutional and
federally mandated duty to provide supervision and tramning to ensure implementation of the

foregoing procedures, which, 1f implemented, would have prevented the further mjury and death

| of Ye Meng Yuan.

100.  On mformation and belief, at all relevant times, the City and County Defendants
had a policy of not requiring strict adherence to compliance with appropriate training procedures
or with 1ts own Emergency Plan.

101 The death of Ye Meng Yuan was caused pursuant to a policy and custom of the
City and County Defendants of inadequate trammg and supervision of the Rescue Workers,
mcluding the Rescue Worker Defendants, therr failure to provide adequate protocols, and their
failure to follow existing protocols

102 The City and County Defendants” policy or custom of grossly madequate training
and supervision of the Rescue Workers and failures relatmg to protocols demonstrated gross
neghgence and/or recklessness amounting to deliberate indifference to the clearly established

constitutional nights of others, including Ye Meng Yuan, to be free from the deprivation of hife

i without due process of law

103 The reckless or grossly negligent manner i which the City and County
Defendants traned and supervised their personnel, failed to provide protocols, and failed to

follow existing protocols created a high risk of injury mortal danger or death to others, mcluding

' Ye Meng Yuan.
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104 The City and County Defendants, who include policymakers, knew that the
Rescue Workers, including the Rescue Worker Defendants, would be Iikely to encounter a large
passenger aircraft incident, requiring medical and rescue operations

105.  The inadequacies of 1ts protocols and the traiming and supervision provided by the
City and County Defendants were so obvious and likely or probable to result in the violation of
constitutional rights that the City and County Defendants acted with deliberate indifference to
the need to protect citizens and acquiesced 1 and/or implicitly authorized the deprivation of Ye
Meng Yuan’s and Plamtiffs rights including Ye Meng Yuan’s night to life in the events following
the Crash

106 The City and County Defendants had knowledge of an obvious risk to the
constitutional rights of persons that the Rescue Workers would come 1 contact with and they
consciously failed to act despite the obvious risk

107.  The above alleged constitutional violations commutted by the Rescue Worker
Defendants were proximately caused by the City and County Defendants® deliberate mdifference
to the traiming and supervision of the Rescue Workers, including the Rescue Worker Defendants,
and by the customs, practices, decisions, and policies of the City and County Defendants

108 As alegal cause of the City and County Defendants® deliberate mdifference and
conduct, Ye Meng Yuan was deprived of the necessary and indicated medical mtervention, care,
treatment, was abandoned in a perilous location, and suffered serious myuries and death. As a
result of the mjury, pain, and suffering Ye Meng Yuan suffered prior to her death, Plamntiffs
clarm damages for loss of life and pain and suffering prio: to Ye Meng Yuan's death as a
survivor action

109 As aresult of the foregomng violations and Ye Meng Yuan’s death, Plaintiffs
sustamned pecuniary and non-pecumary losses, including, without hmatation, grief, loss of
society, loss of support, services, care, comfort, affection, moral support, solace and other losses

for which recovery 1s authorized under applicable law
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110 As a further direct result of Ye Meng Yuan’s death, Plamtiffs incurred expenses
for funeral, bunal, attorney’s fees, and seek recovery for all damages authorized by law 1 an
amount to be determined at tnal

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs hereby demand and pray for judgment against the Defendants,

and each of them, as follows

A To enter judgment in favor of Plaintiffs agamst Defendants on all causes of action
as alleged 1n the Complaint,

B To award compensatory and pecuniary damages i an amount to be ascertained at
tnal,

To award costs of suit incurred herein,
D For attorney’s fees to the extent authorized by law, and
F For such other and further relief as the Court deems just and proper.

DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

Plamnti1ffs demand a trial by jury of any and all 1ssues 1n this action so triable of nght

Dated August 1>, 2014
KREINDLER & KREINDLER LLP

Gretchen M Nelson
Anthony Tarricone
Justin T Green
Gabriel S. Barenfeld
Attorneys for Plamntiffs
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DECLARATION OF GAN YEAND XIAO YUN ZHENG, SUCCESSORS IN INTEREST
OF YE MENG YUAN {CODE CiV. PROC,, § 377.32]

We, Gan Ye and X120 Yun Zheng, do declare as follows
] Ye Meng Yuan is the name of the decedent

2 Ye Meng Yuan died on July 6, 2013, at San Francisco International Airport in

i California
3 We are Ye Meng Yuan’s natural parents
4 There 1s no proceeding now pending n California for administration of Ye Meng

Yuan’s estate

5 We are authorized to act on behalf of the decedent as her successors 1n interest (as
| defined m Section 377 11 of the California Code of Crvil Procedure) with respect Ye Meng
Yuan’s interest in the action or procceding

6 No other person has a superior right to commence this action or proceedin gorto
be substituted for the decedent 1n the pending action or proceeding

7 Attached hereto as Exhibit A is a certified copy of the Death Certificate for the
decedent, Ye Meng Yuan

We declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the

foregoing 1s true and correct.

| BY b€ By Kicto Yun Zhen}

Gan Ye Xiao Yun Zheng “
Dated July 31°1 2014 Dated July 31°2014
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DECLARATION OF GAN YEAND XIAO YUN ZHENG, SUCCESSORS IN INTEREST OF VE MENG YUAN
[CODE CIV PROC, § 377 32]
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